2026 Proposed General Government Operating Budget

Appendix M

Girdwood Valley Service Area
(Fund 106000)

The Municipality's Charter requires that our local government operate under a service area concept,
which means that residents of particular areas vote to levy taxes for service(s) from the Municipality.

Girdwood Valley Service Area was established for street construction and maintenance, solid waste
collection, fire protection, parks and recreation, the operation and maintenance of a municipal
cemetery, the provision of police protection services, and the provision of services in support of
policies that promote local housing and economic stability at the sole expense of the Girdwood
Valley Service Area. The maximum attainable mill rate for the service area shall not exceed 6.00
mills in any calendar year (AMC 27.30.020). The service area is included in Municipal Tax District 4.

The net cost total on the fund summary presented on the following page represents the tax cost for
the Girdwood Valley Service Area, based on the 2026 Proposed Budget. It includes $79,201 of
revenues associated with the fund that are not considered program revenues, such as Penalties &
Interest (P&I) on Delinquent Taxes, Auto Tax, Electric Co-Op Allocation and Cash Pools Short-term
Interest.

The mill rate is calculated based on the taxes to be collected, divided by the assessed valuation of
the service area, then multiplied by 1,000.

Taxes to be Collectedin SA x 1,000 = Mill Rate
Service Area Assessed Value

The preliminary 2026 mill rate, based on the 2026 Proposed Budget taxes to be collected and
preliminary service area assessed value at 08/27/2025, is calculated as follows:

$ 5465561 x 1,000 = 555
$ 984,704,946

The actual 2026 taxes to be collected and the actual 2026 mill rate will be based on the 2026
Revised budget that will include updated/revised IGCs and will be recalculated with updated
assessed values, all to be presented to the Assembly for approval in April 2026.



2026 Proposed General Government Operating Budget

Fund 106000 Summary

Girdwood Valley Service Area
(Fund Center # 355000, 450000, 510900, 558000, 746000, 189130)

2024 2025 2026 26 v 25
Actuals Revised Proposed % Chg
Unaudited
Direct Cost by Fund Center
Housing & Development (510900) - Department: Planning, Deve 5,500 117,600 157,600 34.01%
Fire and Rescue (355000) - Department: Fire 1,282,575 1,500,385 1,602,373 6.80%
Police (450000) - Department: Police 807,946 817,044 913,238 11.77%
Parks & Recreation (558000) - Department: Parks & Recreation 419,888 755,099 539,739 -28.52%
Street Maintenance (746000) - Department: Maintenance & Ops 1,233,061 1,517,892 1,671,751 10.14%
Direct Cost Total 3,748,971 4,708,020 4,884,701 3.75%
Intragovernmental Charges
Charges by/to Other Departments 657,745 671,532 688,561 2.54%
Function Cost Total 4,406,716 5,379,552 5,573,262 3.60%
Program Generated Revenue (28,584) (54,701) (107,701) 96.89%
Net Cost Total 4,378,132 5,324,851 5,465,561 2.64%
Direct Cost by Category
Salaries and Benefits 347,888 346,145 341,853 -1.24%
Supplies 85,664 165,843 162,343 -2.11%
Travel - 5,000 5,000 -
Contractual/OtherServices 3,309,465 4,080,492 4,264,965 4.52%
Debt Service 5,954 110,540 110,540 -
Equipment, Furnishings - - - -
Direct Cost Total 3,748,971 4,708,020 4,884,701 3.75%
Position Summary as Budgeted
Full-Time -
Part-Time 1 1 2 100.00%
Position Total 3 3 4 33.33%


medgington
Highlight

medgington
Highlight


2026 Proposed General Government Operating Budget

Girdwood Service Area Housing & Development
Department: Planning, Development & Public Works

Division: PDPW Administration
(Fund Center # 510900)

2024 2025 2026  26v 25
Actuals Revised Proposed % Chg
Unaudited
Direct Cost by Category
Salaries and Benefits - - - -
Supplies - - - -
Travel - - - -
Contractual/Other Services 5,500 117,600 157,600 34.01%
Equipment, Furnishings - - - -
Manageable Direct Cost Total 5,500 117,600 157,600 34.01%
Debt Service - - - -
Non-Manageable Direct Cost Total - - - -
Direct Cost Total 5,500 117,600 157,600 34.01%
Intragovernmental Charges
Charges by/to Other Departments - : - -
Function Cost Total 5,500 117,600 157,600 34.01%
Net Cost
Direct Cost Total 5,500 117,600 157,600 34.01%
Charges by/to Other Departments Total - - - -
Program Generated Revenue Total - - - -
Net Cost Total 5,500 117,600 157,600 34.01%



medgington
Highlight


2026 Proposed General Government Operating Budget

Girdwood Valley Fire and Rescue
Department: Fire

Division: Emergency Operations
(Fund Center # 355000)

2024 2025 2026 26v 25
Actuals Revised Proposed % Chg
Unaudited
Direct Cost by Category
Salaries and Benefits - - - -
Supplies 4,963 35,000 35,000 -
Travel - 5,000 5,000 -
Contractual/Other Services 1,277,612 1,355,845 1,457,833 7.52%
Equipment, Furnishings - - - -
Manageable Direct Cost Total 1,282,575 1,395,845 1,497,833 7.31%
Debt Service - 104,540 104,540 -
Non-Manageable Direct Cost Total - 104,540 104,540 -
Direct Cost Total 1,282,575 1,500,385 1,602,373 6.80%
Intragovernmental Charges
Charges by/to Other Departments 483,923 475,532 491,888 3.44%
Function Cost Total 1,766,499 1,975,917 2,094,261 5.99%
Program Generated Revenue
406370 - Fire Service Fees (15,600) (21,000) (21,000) -
Program Generated Revenue Total (15,600) (21,000) (21,000) -
Net Cost
Direct Cost Total 1,282,575 1,500,385 1,602,373 6.80%
Charges by/to Other Departments Total 483,923 475,532 491,888 3.44%
Program Generated Revenue Total (15,600) (21,000) (21,000) -
Net Cost Total 1,750,899 1,954,917 2,073,261 6.05%



medgington
Highlight


2026 Proposed General Government Operating Budget

Girdwood Valley Police Services
Department: Police

Division: Operations
(Fund Center # 450000)

2024 2025 2026 26v 25
Actuals Revised Proposed % Chg
Unaudited
Direct Cost by Category
Salaries and Benefits - - - -
Supplies 1,883 - - -
Travel - - - -
Contractual/Other Services 800,109 811,044 907,238 11.86%
Equipment, Furnishings - - - -
Manageable Direct Cost Total 801,992 811,044 907,238 11.86%
Debt Service 5,954 6,000 6,000 -
Non-Manageable Direct Cost Total 5,954 6,000 6,000 -
Direct Cost Total 807,946 817,044 913,238 11.77%
Intragovernmental Charges
Charges by/to Other Departments 405 374 367 -1.87%
Function Cost Total 808,351 817,418 913,605 11.77%
Net Cost
Direct Cost Total 807,946 817,044 913,238 11.77%
Charges by/to Other Departments Total 405 374 367 -1.87%
Program Generated Revenue Total - - - -
Net Cost Total 808,351 817,418 913,605 11.77%



medgington
Highlight


2026 Proposed General Government Operating Budget

Girdwood Valley Parks & Recreation
Department: Parks & Recreation

Division: Girdwood Parks & Recreation
(Fund Center # 558000)

2024 2025 2026 26v 25
Actuals Revised Proposed % Chg
Unaudited
Direct Cost by Category
Salaries and Benefits 48,422 48,756 40,396 -17.15%
Supplies 29,628 44,843 41,343 -7.81%
Travel - - - -
Contractual/Other Services 341,839 661,500 458,000 -30.76%
Equipment, Furnishings - - - -
Manageable Direct Cost Total 419,888 755,099 539,739  -28.52%
Debt Service - - - -
Non-Manageable Direct Cost Total - - - -
Direct Cost Total 419,888 755,099 539,739  -28.52%
Intragovernmental Charges
Charges by/to Other Departments 98,011 97,786 99,163 1.41%
Function Cost Total 517,899 852,885 638,902  -25.09%
Program Generated Revenue
403010 - Assessment Collections (1,224) - - -
406280 - Programs Lessons & Camps (264) (500) (500) -
406290 - Rec Center Rentals & Activities (1,886) (2,100) (2,100) -
406310 - Camping Fees (1,546) (1,900) (1,900) -
Program Generated Revenue Total (4,920) (4,500) (4,500) -
Net Cost
Direct Cost Total 419,888 755,099 539,739  -28.52%
Charges by/to Other Departments Total 98,011 97,786 99,163 1.41%
Program Generated Revenue Total (4,920) (4,500) (4,500) -
Net Cost Total 512,979 848,385 634,402 -25.22%



medgington
Highlight


2026 Proposed General Government Operating Budget

Girdwood Valley Street Maintenance
Department: Maintenance & Operations

Division: Street Maintenance
(Fund Center # 746000)

2024 2025 2026 26v 25
Actuals Revised Proposed % Chg
Unaudited
Direct Cost by Category
Salaries and Benefits 299,466 297,389 301,457 1.37%
Supplies 49,191 86,000 86,000 -
Travel - - - -
Contractual/Other Services 884,405 1,134,503 1,284,294 13.20%
Equipment, Furnishings - - - R
Manageable Direct Cost Total 1,233,061 1,517,892 1,671,751 10.14%
Debt Service - - - -
Non-Manageable Direct Cost Total - - - -
Direct Cost Total 1,233,061 1,517,892 1,671,751 10.14%
Intragovernmental Charges
Charges by/to Other Departments 75,406 97,840 97,143 -0.71%
Function Cost Total 1,308,467 1,615,732 1,768,894 9.48%
Program Generated Revenue
408405 - Lease & Rental Revenue (7,795) (3,000) (3,000) -
Program Generated Revenue Total (8,064) (3,000) (3,000) -
Net Cost
Direct Cost Total 1,233,061 1,517,892 1,671,751  10.14%
Charges by/to Other Departments Total 75,406 97,840 97,143 -0.71%
Program Generated Revenue Total (8,064) (3,000) (3,000) -
Net Cost Total 1,300,403 1,612,732 1,765,894 9.50%



medgington
Highlight


2026 Girdwood Fire Department Budget - Draft
GBOS Final Budget meeting

FIRE 2024 2025 2026 EMS
LABOR STAFF S 829,567 | S 899,245 | S 970,033 S 651,716
LABOR PAID ON CALL S 41,000 S 41,000
Retirement Contribution S 36,000 | S 36,000 | S 45,000 S 3,000
Health Insurance S 92,440 | S 137,600 | S 164,000 S 10,000
Labor Total | $ 958,007 | $ 1,072,845 | $ 1,222,059 | S 149,214 S 705,716
NON-LABOR
Office Supplies S 2,500 | S 2,000 | S 1,800 S 1,000
Operating Expenses S 43,075 | $ 47,000 | $ 50,000 S 24,000
Fuel S 18,000 | S 12,000 | § 12,000 S 9,000
Uniforms S 8,000 | S 5,000 | S 6,974 S 5,000
Repair and Maint S 9,500 | S 5,000 | S 7,000 S 2,000
Professional Services S 50,500 | $ 54,000 | S 50,000 S 34,000
Communications S 10,000 | S 10,000 | S 15,000 S 6,500
Travel Expenditures S 5,000 | $ 5,000 | $ 5,000 S -
Insurance S 46,000 | S 46,000 | S 56,000 S 56,000
Training S 28,000 | S 28,000 | S 50,000 S 36,000
Non-Labor Total| $ 220,575 | S 214,000 | S 253,774 | $ 39,774 | S 173,500
Total | $ 1,178,582 | $ 1,286,845 | S 1,475,833 | S 188,988 | S 879,216
Vehicle maintenance S 30,000 | S 35,000 | S 20,000
Capital Contributions S 74,000 | S 74,000 | S 74,000
Engine 41 Capital Loan Payment S 104,540 | S 104,540 | $ 104,540
Direct Cost Total | $ 1,387,122 | S 1,500,385 | $ 1,674,373
IGC AFD Operations management S 93,522 | $ 99,499 | S 99,499
IGC Office of Fire Chief S 20,731 | S 21,549 | S 21,549
IGC AFD Finance S 11,905 | S 12,084 | S 12,084
IGC AFD Data Systems S 25,851 | S 25,864 | S 25,864
IGC AFD Shop S 218,807 | S 220,080 | S 220,080 <—
IGC Facilites -Girdwood S 47,560 | S 67,607 | S 67,607
IGC PW Communications S 14,761 | S 16,652 | S 16,652
IGC Fire Comm Non-911 S 12,012 | S 12,197 | S 12,197
Total for IGC's S 445,149 | S 475,532 | S 475,532
Fire Service Fees -$21,000.00 -$21,000.00 -$21,000.00

Overall Total

$ 1,811,271.00

$ 1,954,917.00

$ 2,128,905.00



pwmst
Line


2026 Girdwood Fire Department Budget - Draft

GBOS WS #1
FIRE 2024 2025 2026 2026 Comments EMS
LABOR STAFF S 829,567 | S 899,245 | S 919,945 S 551,540
LABOR PAID ON CALL S 41,000 S 41,000
Retirement Contribution S 36,000 | S 36,000 | $ 42,000 S -
Health Insurance S 92,440 | S 137,600 | $ 154,000 S 60,000
Labor Total | $ 958,007 | $ 1,072,845 | $ 1,158,971 | S 86,126 | $ 652,540
NON-LABOR
Office Supplies S 2,500 | S 2,000 | S 1,800 S 1,000
Operating Expenses S 43,075 | $ 47,000 | $ 63,500 S 24,000
Fuel S 18,000 | S 12,000 | § 12,000 S 9,000
Uniforms S 8,000 | S 5,000 | $ 6,974 S 5,000
Repair and Maint S 9,500 | S 5,000 | S 7,000 S 2,000
Professional Services S 50,500 | $ 54,000 | $ 54,000 S 34,000
Communications S 10,000 | S 10,000 | S 20,000 S 6,500
Travel Expenditures S 5,000 | $ 5,000 | $ 5,000 S -
Insurance S 46,000 | S 46,000 | S 56,000 S 56,000
Training S 28,000 | S 28,000 | S 50,000 S 36,000
Non-Labor Total| $ 220,575 | S 214,000 | S 276,274 | $ 62,274 | $ 173,500
Total | $ 1,178,582 | $ 1,286,845 | S 1,435,245 | S 148,400 | $ 826,040
Vehicle maintenance S 30,000 | S 35,000 | S 20,000
Capital Contributions S 74,000 | S 74,000 | S 74,000
Engine 41 Capital Loan Payment S 104,540 | S 104,540 | $ 104,540
Direct Cost Total | $ 1,387,122 | S 1,500,385 | $ 1,633,785
IGC AFD Operations management S 93,522 | $ 99,499 | S 99,499
IGC Office of Fire Chief S 20,731 | S 21,549 | S 21,549
IGC AFD Finance S 11,905 | S 12,084 | S 12,084
IGC AFD Data Systems S 25,851 | S 25,864 | S 25,864
IGC AFD Shop S 218,807 | S 220,080 | S 220,080
IGC Facilites -Girdwood S 47,560 | S 67,607 | S 67,607
IGC PW Communications S 14,761 | S 16,652 | S 16,652
IGC Fire Comm Non-911 S 12,012 | S 12,197 | S 12,197
Total for IGC's S 445,149 | S 475,532 | S 475,532
Fire Service Fees -$21,000.00 -$21,000.00 -$21,000.00

Overall Total

$ 1,811,271.00

$ 1,954,917.00

$ 2,088,317.00




2026 Girdwood Street Maintenance Budget - GBOS Final

% of the

2026 comments

Budget
2024 2025 2026
1000 |Personnel Services
501010(Straight Time Labor 183,534.00 184,831.00 185,831.00 3% Cost of living increase
501040|Annual Leave 2,894.00 2,910.00 2,930.00
501080(Retirement 39,544.00 39,631.00 39,831.00
501090|Life Insurance 82.00 82.00 82.00
501100|Medical/Dental 53,304.00 55,332.00 57,332.00
501105|FICA/Medicare Taxes 13,750.00 13,781.00 13,800.00
501115|Employee Assistance 48.00 48.00 48.00
501130({Unemployment Insurance 359.00 360.00 370.00
501140|Long Term Disability 413.00 414.00 440.00
Labor Total $293,928.00 | $297,389.00 | $300,664.00 18.41%
2000 Non-Labor
511010|Operating 1000.00 1000.00 Resupply General Office Supplies
Office Supplies 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
511170(Fuel 2,800.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 MOA Work truck
511380|Repair and Maintenance Supples 66,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Road Maintenance Supplies (i.e. Salt, Sand, culverts, RAP)
530360|Repair and Maintenance Contracted 12,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 Street light maintenance and Catchbasin cleaning
540150|Advertising
540170|Communication 800.00 0.00 0.00 Phones
540260|Computer SW License 0.00
540300|Fleet Rental 21,847.00 12,503.00 12,503.00 MOA Work Trucks
Rebid the contract in 2025 and expect a price increase on
540640|Contractual Svcs 700,000.00 700,000.00 800,000.00 all equipment
550010(Public Utility Services 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 CEA - Street lights, electric at Maintenance Yard
Non-Labor Total S 845,447 | $ 870,503 | $ 970,503 53.88%
580530|Contribuation to Captial S 300,000 | S 350,000 | S 400,000 21.66% $400k match for the EPA $1.6m grant for the Ruane Culvert
Total Direct Costs S 1,439,375 S 1,517,892| S 1,671,167
Inter Government Charges (IGC) Department of Management and Budget sets the IGC's
600050 IGC Ombudsmen $1,141.00
601420 IGC Resource Management Admin $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00
601880 IGC SAP Captial Recovery $2,379.00 $2,379.00 $2,379.00
601890 IGC SAP Support Center $4,353.00 $4,324.00 $4,324.00

9/2/2025




2026 Girdwood Street Maintenance Budget - GBOS Final

601900|IGC-OECD GIS Licensing | $21200 | $20800 | $208.00 |
605530 General Liability $2,476.00 $26,968.00 $26,968.00 <
605540|Workers Compensation ‘ $7,456.00 $8,961.00 $8,961.00
6000 IGC Total $73,017.00 $97,840.00 $97,840.00 6.07%
Subtotals $ 1,512,392 ($ 1,615,732 |$ 1,769,007 100.01%
9000|Revenues S 3,000 | S 3,000 | S 3,000
Total Cost S 1,509,392 S 1,612,732 $ 1,766,007
Difference from 2024 to 2025 Budget $ 153,275
Mill Rate Estimate 1.97

9/2/2025



pwmst
Line


O ~J oy U1 bW

BB D WWWwWWLWwWwWwWwwwwwdhdhdhdDDNDdDDNNY™NdYNYNNERERERERERPEPRERERERERERERERRE
NP OWOWO-Jo Ul dhWNDEOWOWOWJoUu D WNhE OWOOWwJoUld wdhEFE O

Submitted by:  Assembly Chair Constant and
- | Mayor LaFrance
Mumagal Clerl's Office Prepared by: ~ Municipal Clerk’s Office
pproved : . S
Reviewed by:  Assembly Counsel’s Office
Date: September 9, 2025
Department of Law
Forreading:  August 12, 2025

ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
AO No. 2025-91

AN ORDINANCE OF THE ANCHORAGE MUNICIPAL ASSEMBLY UPDATING
ANCHORAGE MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 1.25, PUBLIC MEETINGS, AND
AMENDING CHAPTER 4.05, AMC SECTIONS 2.30.030, 2.30.036, 2.40.035, 27.20.040
AND 29.10.050, AND RELATED CODE CHANGES.

WHEREAS, the Anchorage Municipal Charter, Section 17.05(a), specifies that “...[a]ll
meetings of the assembly, the school board and other boards and commissions shall be
public” and that “[tlhe assembly by ordinance shall adopt procedures for maximum
reasonable public notice of all meetings.”; and

WHEREAS, the Municipality of Anchorage has enacted Chapter 1.25 of the Anchorage
Municipal Code, Public Meetings, to implement the Charter requirements and for a local
law corresponding to the State Open Meetings Act (AS 44.62.310-.319); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to, Alaska Statute 44.62.312, the policy of the State of Alaska
regarding meetings of governmental units such as the Municipality of Anchorage include
the following:

(a)(2): itis the intent of the law that actions of governmental units be taken openly and
that their deliberations be conducted openly;

(a)(3): the people of this state do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies that serve
them;

(a)(4): the people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to
decide what is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to
know;

(a)(5): the people's right to remain informed shall be protected so that they may retain
control over the government they have created...;

WHEREAS, pursuant to AS 44.62.310(a): “All meetings of a governmental body of a public
entity of the state are open to the public except as otherwise provided by this section or
another provision of law;” and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Charter mandate and state law, over the past few decades the
Assembly has enacted minor changes to the Municipality’s Public Meetings code and
recognizes updates are needed to keep pace with changes in technology and increased
public interest and participation in Municipal meetings; and

WHEREAS, current AMC Chapter 1.25 and the Public Notice Manual published by the
Municipal Clerk contain provisions that need to be updated to reflect best practices and to
make it easier for Municipal staff and the public to find public meeting information,
including:

¢ the locations and procedures for physical public notice of meetings; and

e updating the information to be included in minutes and recordings of public



R O W oW Joy Ul b wdh

=
)

N ==
o W

S B D DS BB DS DLWOWWWWWWWWWNDNNDDDNDNDNDNDNDNNDNNdDNERERRRE
O oo JdJo Ul d WNDEPROWOLOW-JOUd WNE O WO -JOYUd WNE O WOWIJO

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 2 of 19

meetings;
and

WHEREAS, to clarify the Municipal policy on open meetings and public notice, to update
outdated language and procedures, and to create a more understandable process to follow
for publicly noticing Municipal meetings; now, therefore,

THE ANCHORAGE ASSEMBLY ORDAINS:

Section 1. Anchorage Municipal Code section 1.25.005 is hereby amended to read as
follows:

1.25.005 Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly
indicates a different meaning:

Agenda means the order of business taken up at a meeting. The assembly and the
school board may adopt rules for their agenda. An agenda states the purpose of the
meeting by detailing the order of topics taken up at the meeting.

[ANNOUNCEMENT MEANS A VERBAL RECORDING ORWRITTEN POSTING OF
THE DATE, TIME, PLACE AND SUBJECT OF A MEETING THAT STATES THE
NAMES OF THE PUBLIC OFFICIALS CALLING OR ORGANIZING THE MEETING,
AND WHICH IS DISTRIBUTED EITHER BY:

1. DISPLAY OF WRITTEN INFORMATION IN A PUBLIC PLACE MAINTAINED
BY THE MUNICIPAL CLERK AS THE MUNICIPALITY'S PUBLIC NOTICE
LOCATION AND WHICH IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC 24 HOURS
PER DAY, OR, IN THE CASE OF THE SCHOOL BOARD, SUCH A PLACE
MAINTAINED BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT; OR

2. AUTOMATIC REPLAY OF A RECORDING MAINTAINED BY THE
MUNICIPAL CLERK AND ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC 24 HOURS PER
DAY, OR, IN THE CASE OF THE SCHOOL BOARD, SUCH A RECORDING
MAINTAINED BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT; AND

3. OTHER METHODS WHICH MAY BE USED IN ADDITION TO THE
METHODS DESCRIBED IN SUBSECTION A.1 OR A.2 OF THIS SECTION
TO FURTHER PUBLIC AWARENESS OF MEETINGS. WHENEVER
PRACTICAL, SUCH ANNOUNCEMENT SHOULD INCLUDE POSTING ON
A PUBLICLY ACCESSIBLE COMPUTER BULLETIN BOARD.]

Committee meeting means a gathering of members of a municipal body appointed
by the presiding officer of the municipal body to consider assigned topics. Additional
rules for the assembly and its committees are found in Chapter 2.30.

Continued meeting means a regular or special meeting which recesses and then
reconvenes on a day other than the day when the meeting was originally called to
order, and the agenda of which is consistent [IDENTICAL] with the agenda of that
meeting.



O Joy Ul bW

NNNNDMNNOMNNMNNNNNERERRPRRERRPR PR
W JOUT I WNRE OWOW10U D WN R O W

O D DD DD DD DWWwWWWwWwWwWwwwwwdN
QWO JdoUud WNEFEF O WOWJOoUd WNEFE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 3 of 19

Emergency special meeting is a special meeting of the assembly or school board
when an _unforeseen occurrence or _condition requires immediate action by a
meeting of a municipal body authorized to hold an emergency meeting by this code.
Boards and commissions shall not hold emergency special meetings.

Executive session means a session of a municipal body which first convenes as a
meeting and then[, ON] a motion to convene into an executive session that specifies
[SPECIFYING] the purpose of the executive session as clearly and specifically as
possible without defeating the purpose_is passed affirmatively by a majority vote.
[THEREOF PASSED BY AN AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF A MAJORITY OF THE
MUNICIPAL BODY, GOES INTO AN] In_an executive session, [EXCLUDING]
members of the public may be excluded and [DURING WHICH] the body may
consider[S], but takes no action on[,] except to give direction to an attorney or labor
negotiator regarding a specific legal matter or pending labor negotiation, only the
following subjects:

1. Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse
effect upon the finances of the municipality;

2. Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person,
provided the person may request a public discussion;

3. Matters which by law, municipal Charter or ordinance are required to be
confidential; [OR]

4. Matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not
subject to public disclosure;

|o

A specific legal matter, including pending litigation; or

|

As to the assembly, labor negotiations with municipal employees,
consistent with subsection 2.30.036A.2. and chapter 3.70.

These exceptions shall be construed narrowly to avoid exemptions from open
meetings requirements and unnecessary executive sessions.

[INFORMAL MEETING MEANS AN IN-PERSON OR TELEPHONIC MEETING
WHICH INCLUDES MORE THAN THREE MEMBERS OF A BODY SUBJECT TO
THIS CHAPTER, EXCEPT FOR REGULAR, SPECIAL, COMMITTEE OR WORK
SESSION MEETINGS OR ANY MEETING WHICH IS ATTENDED BY A QUORUM
OF ABODY ]

[LISTING MEANS A WRITTEN STATEMENT OF THE DATE, TIME, PLACE AND
SUBJECT OF A MEETING WHICH IS MAINTAINED AND UPDATED BY THE
MUNICIPAL CLERK AND IS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION OR FOR
REFERENCE BY TELEPHONE INQUIRY ]

Meeting means a gathering of members of a municipal body when




O ~J oy Ul bdwdN R

GO bbb DDDAWWWLWWWWWWWWLWNDNDDDDdDNDDNDDdDDSNYSNYSNSERERERERERERERERERERERERERERRE
P O WOOW-JOo U d WNEPEOWOWJOoOU D WNEOWOWOOJoOU P WNDE O WOJoyUdbd WDNDE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 4 of 19

1. More than three members or a majority of the members, whichever is less,
are present, a matter upon which the governmental body is empowered to
act is considered by the members collectively, and the governmental body
has the authority to establish policies or make decisions for a public entity; or

More than three members or a majority of the members, whichever is less,
are present, the gathering is prearranged for the purpose of considering a
matter upon which the governmental body is empowered to act, and the
governmental body has only authority to advise or make recommendations
for a public entity but has no authority to establish policies or make decisions
for the public entity; or

N

|

A municipal body assigns two or more members to a subordinate unit, such
as a committee, subcommittee, task force, or other similar body.

|~

This definition does not apply to

staff meetings or other gatherings of the employees of a public entity.
meetings held for the purpose of participating in or attending a
gathering of a national, state, or regional organization of which the
public entity, governmental body, or member of the governmental
body is a member, but only if no action is taken and no business of
the governmental body is conducted at the meetings.

o |

5. This definition does not apply to meetings of community councils, which are
not governmental bodies pursuant to AMC Chapter 2.40.

Charter Reference — Public meetings, § 17.05.
State law reference - AS 44.62.310(d).
Cross reference —Ch. 2.40.

Minutes means an electronic recording of the public meeting or written action
minutes of the action occurring at the meeting, unless both are required by this
chapter or elsewhere in code.

Cross reference —§ 1.25.015 — Agendas; Duties of staff; Rules for public notice of
meetings.

Municipal body means a governmental body including the assembly, school board,
boards and commissions including but not limited to those listed in Title 4 or
elsewhere in this code, the Anchorage Community Development Authority board of
directors, service area supervisory boards, or similar governmental body. Municipal
body includes the members of a committee, subcommittee, task force, or other
subordinate unit of a municipal body if the subordinate unit consists of two or more
members. Municipal body does not include community councils pursuant to Chapter
2.40.

State law reference — AS 44.62.310(h)(1).
Cross Reference —Chapter 2.40.

Post means either to display written information in an electronic or physical locations
as determined by the context of this chapter.




O ~J oy Ul bW

O o b DSBS, LWLWWWWWWWWWDNDDDDNDDNDDdDDdNDYSEYMNDYNdSNNDSREREREPERERERErR,EPRERERERERERERRE
P O WOW-Jo Ul d WNEPEOWOOWJOU D WNREOWOWOOJOU P WNDE O WOLJoyUld WDNDE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 5 of 19

1. Electronic locations: The municipality maintains two electronic locations to
display public notices: the municipal public notice website and the events
calendar on the municipal website.

N

Physical locations: The municipality maintains two physical locations to
repost public meeting notices: the permanent bulletin board outside of the
municipal clerk's office in City Hall at 632 West 6th Avenue, Anchorage, and
the permanent bulletin board outside of the entrance of City Hall facing 7t
Avenue.

Public entity means a public authority or corporation, the municipality, the school
district, boards and commissions, and other governmental units of the municipality.

State law reference - AS 44.62.310(h)(3) definition of “public entity.”

Publicly notice means actions have been taken to comply with this section of the
code.

Publish means to cause to be posted on a municipal website designated for public
notices (the municipal public notice website) the matter required by law to be
publicly noticed. Unless otherwise provided by the assembly, posting shall be
maintained for seven consecutive days.

Charter Reference — Definitions, § 17.13(h).
Cross Reference - Definitions, § 1.25.020.

Recording means an electronic or digital sound reproduction. For purposes of this
chapter, the term “tape” or “tape recording” also means electronic or digital

recording.

Regular meeting means a gathering of a municipal body for the purpose of
conducting business which occurs at a usual and prearranged time and place.

1. In_the case of the assembly, a regular meeting is a gathering held and
noticed in accordance with section 2.30.030.
2. In the case of the school board, a regular meeting is a gathering held and

noticed in accordance with subsection 29.10.050C.
[AND, IN THE CASE OF THE SCHOOL BOARD, WHICH IS ADVERTISED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ANCHORAGE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 29.10.050.C.
IN THE CASE OF THE ASSEMBLY, A REGULAR MEETING IS A GATHERING
HELD AS DESIGNATED IN SECTION 2.30.030.A AND AS ADVERTISED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AMC SECTION 2.30.030.K.]

Special meeting means a[N IN-PERSON] gathering of a municipal body called by
the presiding officer or by one member fewer than a quorum of the municipal body
for the purpose of conducting business which is of such urgency as to make waiting
for the next reqular meeting impractical.

1. [. OR, i]In the case of the assembly, a special meeting may be called and
shall be [BY THE MAYOR, FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONDUCTING
BUSINESS WHICH IS OF SUCH URGENCY AS TO MAKE WAITING FOR
THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IMPRACTICAL AND WHICH, IN THE




O J oy U WDN -

=
[@>2Ne)

L T S N S SR S
S oUW

e
©

OO s S DSS DS DBSDBEDAWWWWWWWWWWDNDNDNDDMNDNDMNDDMNDDNDDNDDND
P O WO -Jo Ul WNEFE OWOWJoUdWDNREFEOWOW-JoYU b wWwdhE O

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 6 of 19

CASE OF THE ASSEMBLY, IS] held_ and publicly noticed in accordance with
applicable provisions of Charter § 4.04 and section 2.30.030 of this code.

Charter Reference — Presiding officer, meetings and procedures, § 4.04.

Task force means a temporary group created by a municipal body assigned to
consider assigned topics and when created a termination date or event is specified.
A task force is not a board or commission. For purposes of the school board, an ad
hoc committee shall have the same definition of task force.

Work session or worksession means a gathering of assembly, [OR] school board, or
board and commission members for the purpose of obtaining information, training,
or [AND] discussing an announced topic. Work sessions must be publicly noticed
and recorded. Work sessions are gatherings but are not “meetings” for purposes of
the Charter. Members may not debate, deliberate or vote at any worksession
[ATTEND TELEPHONICALLY].

Charter Reference — Public meetings, § 17.05.

(AO No. 94-132(S), § 1, 8-25-94)

Cross reference(s)—Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1.05.020.

Section 2. Anchorage Municipal Code 1.25.010 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1.25.010 Policy; p[P]ublic meetings[ GENERALLY].

A. The policy of the municipality is that [A]all meetings of the assembly, the
school board, [AND OTHER ]boards and commissions, and any municipal
body shall be open to the public [AS PROVIDED IN CHARTER SECTION
17.05],_except as_otherwise provided in this chapter or another provision of

law.

B. Reasonable public notice shall be given for all meetings required to be public
under this chapter.

C. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to reduce the effect of applicable

state law, AS 44.62.310-.319, Open Meetings of Governmental Bodies. This
chapter shall be construed broadly to effectuate the greatest possible public
notice of gatherings of municipal bodies covered by this chapter;
circumstances not specifically addressed should be handled according to this

principle.

(AO No. 95-227, 1-2-96)

Charter reference — Public meetings, § 17.05.

Section 3. Anchorage Municipal Code 1.25.015 is amended to read as follows:



O ~J oy Ul bW

OO s b DS DDA WWWLWWWWWWWWLWDNDNDDdDNDNDDdDDdNDYSEYMNDYNdDNNDSREREREREPERERERER,EPRERERERERERERRE
P O WOW-JOo Ul WNREFPEOWOWJOU HWNREOWOWJOU P WDNDE O WOJoyU & WDNDE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 7 of 19

1.25.015

Agendas; Duties of staff; Rules for public n[N]otice of meetings.

A. Agendas. An agenda shall include at a minimum:

Il S Sl el I

|

Call to order.

Roll call.

Minutes of previous meetings (if applicable).
Disclosures.

Unfinished business.

New business.

Public participation.

Adjournment.

Duties of Staff. The public official tasked with staffing a meeting shall:

|

N>

|0

post the written public notice information on both the municipal public
notice webpage and the events calendar on the municipal website as
provided in subsection C;
a. Notwithstanding the subsection above, the school district shall
post according to Title 29.
prepare and post the agenda, if applicable, as provided in subsection
A; and
either electronically record or produce written action minutes, unless
both are required by this chapter or code.
a. The recording of the meeting shall include the entire meeting
from the call to order to adjournment, although recesses,
provided no business takes place, are not required to be
recorded. If the public meeting is recorded and the recording is
available to the public on a publicly accessible website,
(currently the municipal meetings page), written action minutes
are not required for committees or task forces but are required
for boards and commissions.
Written action minutes shall include the call to order; roll call;
motions, seconds, the vote of each member in attendance on
motions, but do not include discussion and debate on motions;
disclosures by members of potential conflicts of interest and
the ruling on the potential conflict, but do not include
discussion and debate on the potential conflict or ruling; the
subject of public hearings and a statement, if applicable, that
public testimony or comment was provided on that subject; and
adjournment of the meeting.
Minutes, either by recording or written action minutes are
public records and should be retained by the municipal agency
that staffs the municipal body in accordance with the applicable
records retention schedule.

i=3

|

Cross Reference —Section 2.30.035 — Meeting Agenda and Section 29.10.050 -

Meetings.

C. Rules for public notice.

1.

Reqular Meetings. The public notice information for reqular meetings
of any municipal body shall be posted on the municipal public notice




O ~Joy Ul bW

OO bbb DDA WWWWWWWWWWLWDNDNDDdDDNDNDDdDDdDYST NSNS REREPERERERERREPRERERERERERERRE
P O WOW-Jo Ul dWNDREFP OWOW-JoOU H»HWNREOWOWJOU P WDNE O WOJoyUd WDNDE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 8 of 19

[P

|0

website at least 7 days before the meeting, unless otherwise required

by code, and shall include at least the following:

O[O |©

|

|®

The name of the municipal body;

The date, time, and place of the meeting;

A telephone number or link to _an_electronic location for

participation in_a _meeting that allows telephonic or virtual

participation;

The name, email, telephone number for the public official who

is the contact person for the meeting;

The purpose of the meeting or an agenda.

i An agenda, or a link to the agenda, for the meeting shall
be posted on the municipal public notice website at
least 24 hours before the meeting, provided the meeting
has been otherwise publicly noticed under this
subsection.

ii. The assembly agenda shall be published according to
section 2.30.035 — Meeting agenda.

iii. The school board agenda shall be published according
to section 29.10.050 - Meetings.

Special Meetings. The public notice for special meetings of any

municipal body shall be posted on the municipal public notice website

at least 24 hours before the meeting, unless otherwise required by

code, and shall include at least the following:

O [o |

|

|®

the name of the municipal body;

the date, time, and place of the meeting;

a_telephone number or link to _an electronic location for

participation in_a _meeting that allows telephonic or virtual

the name, email, telephone number for the public official who is
the contact person for the meeting;

the purpose of the meeting or an agenda.

i An agenda, or a link to the agenda, for the meeting shall
be posted on the municipal public notice website at
least 24 hours before the meeting.

ii.. The assembly agenda shall be published according to
section 2.30.035 — Meeting agenda.

jii. The school board agenda shall be published according
to section 29.10.050 - Meetings.

Continued meetings

a.

b.

shall be publicly noticed a minimum of 24 hours prior to the
meeting, unless the recessed meeting is continued to the next
day or in cases of exigent circumstances.

Time permitting, the continued meeting notice shall include the
same _information as a regular meeting, except that a new
agenda need not be published as long as the agenda is
consistent with the agenda from the recessed meeting.




O ~J oy Ul bW

OO s b b DDA WWWLWWWWWWWWLWDNDNDDdDDNDNDDdDDdNDYSMNDYNdDSNDSREREREPERERERrR,PRERERERERERERRE
P O WOWJo Ul d WNNEFP OWOW-JoOU P WDNREOWOWJOU P WDNE O WOLJoyU & WDNDE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 9 of 19

©

Im

A.

4. Worksessions shall be public noticed at least 48 hours prior to the
work session and shall include the same information as a regular
meeting, except the subject of the worksession shall be included in
the notice and there is no requirement to otherwise post the purpose
or an agenda.

5. Weekend or municipal holiday. Any meeting scheduled to occur on a
weekend or municipal holiday shall be publicly noticed no later than
noon on the last business day prior to the meeting or earlier if
otherwise provided in this section. Except an emergency special
meeting of the assembly shall be convened according to section
2.30.030E. The school board shall follow notice requirements adopted
by the school board.

o

Emergency special meeting. The assembly and school board may
hold emergency special meetings. A reasonable attempt shall be
made to provide prior public notice of an emergency meeting prior to
the start of the meeting. The notice shall include the same
information as a special meeting. After adjournment the notice shall
be published as soon as practicable to record the occurrence of the
emergency special meeting. Except where specifically allowed by this
code, boards and commissions shall not hold emergency special

meetings.

No public notice of a meeting of members of a municipal body is required
when that meeting occurs at a scheduled event or gathering not otherwise
subiject to this chapter, so long as the gathering:

1. Is open to the public;

2. Is of such general community interest that members of the municipal
body present would reasonably be expected to attend:;

3. Is publicized more broadly, completely and with longer notice than
would be required otherwise under this chapter; and

4. Is only for the gathering of information and is not used for discussion,

deliberation or decision-making by the members of the municipal body
in attendance.

The public notice requirements of this chapter do not apply to gatherings at
which no public business is discussed.

PURSUANT TO AS 44.62.310(E), REASONABLE NOTICE OF MEETINGS
OF THE ASSEMBLY, SCHOOL BOARD, ALL REGULATORY AND
ADJUDICATORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS LISTED IN CHAPTER
4.40, THE ELECTION COMMISSION, THE ANCHORAGE COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE ALASKA
CENTER FOR THE PERFORMING ARTS BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND
ANY OTHER MUNICIPAL BODIES WITH AUTHORITY FOR SPENDING,
POLICY, REGULATION OR ADJUDICATION, NOT INCLUDING
COMMUNITY COUNCILS, SHALL BE [ANNOUNCED AS DEFINED IN THE
DEFINITION OF THE TERM "ANNOUNCEMENT" IN SECTION 1.25.005 AS
FOLLOWS]



O J o Ul wdN

GO S bdbsbsDSSSSESDDDDWWWWWWWWWWNDDDNDDdDDDdDNDDNDDYdDDYSNDYSNNSERERER,rPRERERERERERERERERERERE
P O WO -JoOUlhd WNhDREPRP O WO -JoOUud WNEPEPEOWOJIOOUEd WNEOWOWJIOoOU D WwNE O

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 10 of 19

[1.

2.

3.

[4.

5.

[6.

[7.

REGULAR MEETINGS SHALL, IN ADDITION TO OTHER
ADVERTISING REQUIREMENTS OF THIS CODE, BE
ANNOUNCED USING ONE OR MORE OF THE METHODS
DESCRIBED IN THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM
"ANNOUNCEMENT" IN SECTION 1.25.005, EXCEPT THAT THE
SUBJECT MAY BE OMITTED.]

SPECIAL MEETINGS SHALL BE ANNOUNCED A MINIMUM OF 24
HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING USING ONE OR MORE OF THE
METHODS DESCRIBED IN SUCH DEFINITION.]

EXCEPT IN CASES WHEN EXIGENCIES REQUIRE UNUSUAL
HASTE, CONTINUED MEETINGS SHOULD BE ANNOUNCED A
MINIMUM OF 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING USING ONE
OR MORE OF THE METHODS DESCRIBED IN THE DEFINITION
OF THE TERM "ANNOUNCEMENT" IN SECTION 1.25.005, AND
SHOULD, TIME PERMITTING, BE ADVERTISED IN THE SAME
MANNER AS A REGULAR MEETING.]

WORK SESSIONS SHOULD BE ANNOUNCED AT LEAST 48
HOURS PRIOR TO THE WORK SESSION USING ONE OR MORE
OF THE METHODS DESCRIBED IN THE DEFINITION OF THE
TERM"ANNOUNCEMENT" IN SECTION 1.25.005. HOWEVER, IF A
BODY HOLDS REGULAR WORK SESSIONS AT A USUAL,
PREARRANGED TIME, THE SUBJECT AND PLACE OF THE WORK
SESSION MAY BE ANNOUNCED 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE
WORK SESSION.]

COMMITTEE MEETINGS SHOULD BE ANNOUNCED AT LEAST 48
HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING USING ONE OR MORE OF THE
METHODS DESCRIBED IN THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM
"ANNOUNCEMENT" IN SECTION 1.25.005. HOWEVER, IF A
COMMITTEE HOLDS REGULAR MEETINGS AT A USUAL,
PREARRANGED TIME, THE SUBJECT AND PLACE OF THE
MEETING MAY BE ANNOUNCED 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE
MEETING.]

INFORMAL MEETINGS SHOULD BE ANNOUNCED AT LEAST 24
HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING USING ONE OR MORE OF THE
METHODS DESCRIBED IN THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM
"ANNOUNCEMENT" IN SECTION 1.25.005. ANYONE MAY ATTEND
AN INFORMAL MEETING; HOWEVER, SHOULD A QUORUM OF
ANY BODY SUBJECT TO THIS CHAPTER BE PRESENT AT ANY
TIME, THE MEETING MUST BE ADJOURNED.]

EXCEPT FOR AN EMERGENCY SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
ASSEMBLY AS CONVENED ACCORDING TO SECTION 2.30.030.F,
MEETINGS SCHEDULED TO OCCUR ON WEEKENDS OR
MUNICIPAL HOLIDAYS SHALL BE ANNOUNCED NO LATER THAN
NOON ON THE LAST BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO THE MEETING
OR EARLIER AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION.]



O J oy U wdN

O bbb S DSESAESEDSEDDDAWLWLWWLWWWWWWWdNDDDNDDdDDDdDNDDdDDYdDYSNSSNSEREREREPRERERERERERERERERERERE
P O WOW-JoUldhWNDRPFPROWOOJOUd WNEPEPEOWOUJIOUEd WNEOWOOWJIOoO U D WwWwNDE O

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 11 0of 19

B.

[C.

D.

[E.

REASONABLE NOTICE OF MEETINGS OF TECHNICAL ADVISORY
BOARDS, PROGRAM ADVISORY BOARDS, UTILITY COMMISSIONS,
THE AQUATIC RESOURCE COMMISSION, ALL SERVICE AREA
SUPERVISORY BOARDS, AND OTHER BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, TASK

FORCES AND COMMITTEES, OR OTHER MUNICIPAL BODIES WITHOUT

AUTHORITY FOR SPENDING, POLICY, REGULATION OR

ADJUDICATION, NOT INCLUDING COMMUNITY COUNCILS, SHALL BE

ACCOMPLISHED BY MEANS OF LISTING WITH THE MUNICIPAL CLERK,

AS DEFINED IN SECTION 1.25.005. THE CONTENTS OF THE CLERK'S

LISTING SHALL BE OPEN TO INSPECTION OR TELEPHONE INQUIRY

DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS. LISTING SHALL BE REQUIRED

AS FOLLOWS:

1. THE SUBJECT, TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS ATTENDED BY
A QUORUM OF THE BODY SHALL BE LISTED WITH THE
MUNICIPAL CLERK AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE
MEETING, EXCEPT THAT THE SUBJECT MAY BE OMITTED FOR
REGULAR MEETINGS.

2. THE SUBJECT, TIME AND PLACE OF ANY MEETING ATTENDED
BY MORE THAN THREE MEMBERS OF A BODY WHEN THE
GATHERING IS PREARRANGED FOR THE PURPOSE OF
CONSIDERING A MATTER UPON WHICH THE BODY IS
EMPOWERED TO ACT SHALL BE LISTED WITH THE MUNICIPAL
CLERK AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.]

NO ADDITIONAL NOTICE OF A MEETING OF MEMBERS OF A

MUNICIPAL BODY IS REQUIRED WHEN THAT MEETING OCCURS AT A

SCHEDULED EVENT OR GATHERING NOT OTHERWISE SUBJECT TO

THIS CHAPTER, SO LONG AS THE GATHERING:

1. IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC;

2. IS OF SUCH GENERAL COMMUNITY INTEREST THAT MEMBERS
OF THE MUNICIPAL BODY PRESENT WOULD REASONABLY BE
EXPECTED TO ATTEND;

3. IS PUBLICIZED MORE BROADLY, COMPLETELY AND WITH
LONGER NOTICE THAN WOULD BE REQUIRED OTHERWISE
UNDER THIS CHAPTER; AND

4. IS ONLY FOR THE GATHERING OF INFORMATION AND IS NOT
USED FOR DISCUSSION, DELIBERATION OR DECISION-MAKING
BY THE MEMBERS OF THE MUNICIPAL BODY IN ATTENDANCE.]

THE NOTICE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS CHAPTER DO NOT APPLY TO
GATHERINGS AT WHICH NO PUBLIC BUSINESS IS DISCUSSED.]

ALL MEETINGS SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS
CHAPTER SHALL BE OPEN TO ANY PERSON. IN THE CASE OF
TELEPHONIC MEETINGS, DISCUSSIONS MUST BE AUDIBLE TO
ANYONE WHO WISHES TO ATTEND. THIS SUBSECTION DOES NOT
APPLY TO EXECUTIVE SESSIONS PROPERLY CONVENED
ACCORDING TO AS 44.62.310(B) AND OTHER RELEVANT PROVISIONS
OF THIS CODE.]



O J oy Ul bW

G o bbb S WWWLWWWWWWWWDNDNDDDDDMDNDDNDDdDDYSSYNYSNNSNEREREERERERERERERERPERERERERERERRE
P O WO -Jo Ul WP O WO -JOoOU D WNREFPEOWOOJoUd WNDE O WOWLwWTIOoUd WNDE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 12 of 19

[F.  THEBOARD OF ETHICS SHALL ACCEPT AND CONSIDER COMPLAINTS
OF VIOLATIONS OF THIS CHAPTER AND MAY RECOMMEND THAT
CORRECTIVE ACTION BE TAKEN BY THE PUBLIC BODY. UPON A
RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD OF ETHICS FINDING SUCH A
VIOLATION, THE ASSEMBLY, THE SCHOOL BOARD OR THE MAYOR
MAY PURSUE THE FULL RANGE OF CORRECTIVE ACTION AFFORDED
IN STATE LAW UNDER AS 44.62.310, OPEN MEETINGS OF
GOVERNMENTAL BODIES.]

[G. ACTION TAKEN OR DELIBERATED IN A MEETING WHICH VIOLATES
THIS CHAPTER IS VOIDABLE. A BODY MAY CORRECT SUCH
VIOLATION AND TAKE THE SAME ACTION SUBSEQUENTLY BY
REPEATING THE ENTIRE DELIBERATIVE AND DECISION-MAKING
PROCESS IN PUBLIC ACCORDING TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
CHAPTER. THE BOARD OF ETHICS IN MAKING A RECOMMENDATION
THAT THE ACTION BE RENDERED VOID, AND THE ASSEMBLY,
SCHOOL BOARD, AND MAYOR IN CONSIDERING IMPLEMENTATION OF
THE BOARD OF ETHICS RECOMMENDATION, SHALL CONSIDER AT
LEAST THE FACTORS THAT WOULD BE CONSIDERED BY A COURT IN
MAKING A DETERMINATION UNDER AS 44.62.310(f).]

[H. THE MUNICIPAL CLERK SHALL COMPILE A MANUAL FOR
COMPLIANCE WITH MUNICIPAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MEETING
ANNOUNCEMENT AND OPENNESS AND SHALL DISTRIBUTE THE
MANUAL THE MUNICIPALITY'S PUBLIC NOTICE WEBSITE TO
MEMBERS OF ALL MUNICIPAL BODIES.]

[l THE MUNICIPAL CLERK SHALL PUBLISH MEETINGS OF MUNICIPAL
BODIES. THE PUBLISHED MATERIAL SHALL INCLUDE A TELEPHONE
NUMBER FOR RECORDED ANNOUNCEMENT OF MEETINGS, THE
LOCATION OF POSTED ANNOUNCEMENT OF MEETINGS, THE
TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS OF THE CLERK'S OFFICE, AND,
TO THE EXTENT TIME PERMITS, A LISTING OF ALL MEETINGS OF
MUNICIPAL BODIES SCHEDULED FOR THE WEEK FOLLOWING THE
PUBLICATION].

[J. NOTHING IN THIS CHAPTER SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO REDUCE THE
EFFECT OF APPLICABLE STATE LAW. THIS CHAPTER SHALL BE
CONSTRUED BROADLY TO EFFECTUATE THE GREATEST POSSIBLE
PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETINGS CONSISTENT WITH THE PUBLIC GOOD;
CIRCUMSTANCES NOT SPECIFICALLY ADDRESSED SHOULD BE
HANDLED ACCORDING TO THAT PRINCIPLE.]

(AO No. 94-132(S), § 2, 8-25-94; AO No. 2006-140(S-1), § 2, 1-1-07; AO No. 2008-
124(S), § 2, 5-26-09: AO No. 2009-134, § 1, 1-12-10; AO No. 2015-23(S) , § 1, 3-
24-15)

Section 4. Anchorage Municipal Code chapter 1.25 is hereby amended to add a new
section to read as follows (requiring no legislative drafting marks):



O J o Ul wdN

g o S DS S WWLWWWWWWWWLWDNDNDDdDdDNDNDDdDDNYNDSNNEREREREPEREREREREREPRERERERERRE
H O WO -Jo Ul dWNDEFPOWOJoOUuPd WNEOWOOJoOU P> WNDE OWOLJoyOU WD E O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 13 of 19
1.25.018 Remedies for violations.
A. Violation of this chapter or the state Open Meetings Act.

1. Action taken in a public meeting by the assembly, the school board, or
boards and commissions which violates this chapter or AS 44.62.310
Open Meetings of Government Bodies is voidable.

2. The assembly, school board, or boards and commissions may cure
such violation or alleged violation by holding another meeting in
compliance with notice and other requirements of this chapter and
conducting a substantial and public reconsideration of the matters
considered at the original meeting according to the provisions of this
chapter and AS 44.62.310.

Section 5. Anchorage Municipal Code chapter 1.25 is hereby amended to add a new

section to read as follows (requiring no legislative drafting marks):
1.25.019 Miscellaneous provisions.

A. The municipal clerk shall compile a guidance manual for publicly noticing
meetings of municipal bodies, distribute the manual on the municipality’s
website, and make it available to the municipal officials staffing municipal
bodies. Nothing in the manual shall be construed to supersede the
requirements of this chapter.

B. The municipal clerk shall, to the extent time permits, repost written
information displayed on the municipal public notice website and the
municipal event calendars for the upcoming week in a physical public notice
location as defined in this chapter.

C. This section does not apply to the school board.

Section 6. Anchorage Municipal Code 2.30.030 is hereby amended to read as follows

(the remainder of the section is not affected and not set out):
2.30.030 Meetings.

A. Regular meetings. Regular meetings of the assembly shall be held twice
each month on Tuesday at 5:00 p.m. at the Assembly Chambers, 3600
Denali Street, unless otherwise designated by the assembly.

1. The electronic recording of all regular and special meetings [AND
ALL WORK SESSIONS] shall be retained permanently by the
municipal clerk.

B. Special meetings. At least 24 hours' written notice shall be given
designating the date, time, place and purpose of a special meeting. The
municipal clerk or designee shall serve special meeting notices by



O ~J oy Ul bW

S D D D D D DN WWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNDNNDNR R P PR R R R
AU WNERFROW®O-JIONUE WNROWOWTIONUDWNRL,OWOLWJU DN WNR O W

(@2 BTSN
O W @

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 14 of 19

DIC].

electronic transmission to each member of the assembly at the address
assigned to the member by the Municipality of Anchorage.

Continued meetings

1. Shall be publicly noticed a minimum of 24 hours prior to the meeting,
unless the recessed meeting is continued to the next day or in cases
of exigent circumstances.

2. Time permitting, the continued meeting notice shall include the same
information as a regular meeting, except that a new agenda need not
be published as long as the continued meeting agenda is consistent
with the agenda from the recessed meeting.

Electronic public notice of meetings. The municipal clerk shall enter the
date, time, place and purpose of meetings on the assembly calendar and
on the public notice page of the municipal website. The municipal clerk may
also publish in a newspaper of general circulation notice of special
meetings.

[D]. [PHYSICAL NOTICE OF MEETINGS IN CITY HALL. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

*kk

SHALL BE POSTED BY THE MUNICIPAL CLERK_IN THE LOBBY OF THE
CLERK'S OFFICE IN THE CITY HALL, 632 W. SIXTH AVENUE,
ANCHORAGE]

Emergency special meetings. In an emergency, a reasonable attempt shall
be made to provide prior notice of an emergency special meeting prior to the
start of the meeting. It [WITHOUT NOTICE] shall be a legal meeting if all
members are present or there is a quorum and all absent members have
waived in writing or by email the [REQUIRED] notice required by subsection
B. The waiver may be either before or after the time of the meeting. The
waiver shall be attached to and made a part of the record for that meeting.

Cancellation of meetings. Cancellation of a special assembly meeting shall
be by the authority of the persons who called the meeting and shall be
effective by notice upon each member of the assembly through electronic
transmission at the address assigned to the member by the Municipality of
Anchorage and communicated not less than two hours before the special
meeting.

Business at emergency or special meeting. No business shall be transacted
at any special meeting of the assembly except as specifically stated in the
notice of the meeting. In the event of an emergency special meeting,
business necessarily pertaining to the emergency for which the meeting is
called may [SHALL] be transacted [IN THE ABSENCE OF THE WRITTEN
NOTICE].

*kk *kk

(AO No. 13-75; AO No. 61-75; AO No. 242-76; AO No. 78-49; AO No. 79-137; AO
No. 82-140; AO No. 83-120(S); AO No. 83-211; AO No. 84-55; AO No. 84-86; AO
No. 84-224; AO No. 84-249; AO No. 85-15(S); AO No. 85-54; AO No. 86-62; AO



O J o Ul wdN

—
[@> NG

[
[

=
w N

O DB D D D B DDA DDA WWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNNNRE R R R PR
WO T DWNRLROWOW®O-JONUTDWNRLROWOW-TJONOS WNROWO®-Jo U

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 15 of 19

No. 86-151; AO No. 87-12; AO No. 88-164; AO No. 89-15, 4-1-89; AO No. 90-
154(S); AO No. 91-25; AO No. 91-178(S); AO No. 92-107(S); AO No. 94-76, § 1,
5-3-94; AO No. 94-132(S), § 4, 8-25-94; AO No. 94-177(S), § 1, 10-27-94; AO No.
95-130, § 1, 6-6-95; AO No. 95-83(S-1), §§ 1—3, 1-9-96; AO No. 96-22, § 3, 2-6-
96; AO No. 96-92, § 1, 6-25-96; AO No. 97-19, § 2, 2-11-97; AO No. 98-161, § 1,
10-20-98; AO No. 2000-121, § 1, 8-15-00; AO No. 2001-126, § 1, 7-10-01; AO No.
2002-148, § 1, 10-15-02; AO No. 2003-58, § 2, 7-8-03; AO No. 2008-81, § 1, 7-29-
08; AO No. 2009-134, § 1, 1-12-10; AO No. 2015-113, § 1, 10-13-15; AO
No. 2017-53, § 5, 4-11-17; AO No. 2021-113(S), § 1, 11-10-21; AO No. 2023-73, §
4, 7-25-23; AO No. 2023-129(S), § 1, 12-19-23)

Charter reference— Meetings, § 4.04; quorum, special meeting, § 4.04;
executive session, § 17.05(a); midnight deadline, § 17.05(b).

State Law reference— Meetings open to the public, AS 29.20.020; open
meetings law, AS 44.62.310.

Section 7. Anchorage Municipal Code section 2.30.036 is hereby amended to read as
follows (the remainder of the section is not affected and not set out):

2.30.036 - Executive sessions.

*kk *kk *kk

C. No official action may be taken in executive sessions except to give direction
to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding a specific legal matter or pending
labor negotiation. Although the public may be excluded, the session shall be
electronically recorded. The recording shall be disclosed following release
only upon request pursuant to chapter 3.90 according to the following
timelines:

1. If the session concerns pending litigation, the release date shall be
when all causes of action have been resolved by final judgment or
when further claims arising from the matter are otherwise barred,;

2. If the session concerns labor negotiations, the release date shall be
six months following expiration of the labor contract;
3. If the session concerns matters that, if immediately disclosed, would

adversely affect the finances of the municipality, the release date shall
be a date certain set by the assembly at the conclusion of the
executive session; and

4, If the session concerns matters which tend to defame or injure the
reputation of persons the assembly may set a release date or may
provide that no release shall occur.

5. If the session concerns matters required by law to be confidential or
consideration of government records which by law are not subject to
public disclosure, the release date shall be when such matters or
documents are disclosable.

D. The assembly may extend the time periods set forth in subsection C. only for
good cause.
*%k% *%k% *%k%



O J oy Ul bdwdN R

G o s S bbb S WWWLWWWWWWWWLWNDNDDDDDNDDNDDdDDS>DYSNYNYSERERERERERERERERERPERERERERERRE
P O WOW-JO0O U d WNEPEOWOWOXJOOUDWNEOWOWOOJoOU P WDNDNE O WOLJoyU b WDNDE OV

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 16 of 19

(AO No. 2017-53. § 6, 7-1-17; AO No. 2020-30(S), § 3, 4-28-20)

Section 8. Anchorage Municipal Code section 4.05.090, is hereby amended to read as
follows:

4.05.090 Meetings.

A. A board or commission shall hold regular monthly meetings at such time and
place as may from time to time be designated by the board or commission,
but meetings need not be held if no business is pending. Public notice and
minutes of meetings of b[BJoards and commissions shall_be in compliance
with Chapter 1.25. [ADVISE THE PUBLIC OF THEIR MEETING
SCHEDULES, OR PUBLICLY ADVERTISE THEIR MEETINGS WHERE
NECESSITATED BY STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS.]

|o0

Except as otherwise provided by law, AMC Chapter 1.25, and this section,
Robert’s Rules of Order, as revised, shall be applicable and govern all rules
of procedure. The chair of a board or commission, or the municipal employee
who is designated as an ex officio member of the board or commission
pursuant to section 4.05.140, or a majority of the board or commission, may
call a special meeting of the board or commission. Meetings of all boards and
commissions shall be open to the public, except for an executive session or
when meeting solely to make a decision on a procedural motion brought by a
party in an adjudicatory proceeding, from which the public may be excluded.

A board or commission may establish reasonable rules and requlations only
under procedures of Chapter 3.40, governing proceedings before the board
or commission.

|

D. Boards and commissions shall not hold emergency special meetings.

[NOTICE OF MEETINGS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS SHALL BE AS
ESTABLISHED IN SECTION 1.25.015.]

(CAC 2.64.090; AO No. 89-122(S-1); AO No. 94-132(S), § 6, 8-25-94; AO No. 2022-
70, § 9, 7-26-22)

Section 9. Anchorage Municipal Code sections 4.05.120 and 4.05.130 are hereby
repealed in their entirety. In accordance with AMC section 1.05.050B., a copy of the
existing text of the sections being repealed are attached as Attachment A.

Section 10. Anchorage Municipal Code section 27.20.040 is hereby amended to read as
follows:

27.20.040 Organization; meetings.

A board established under this chapter shall meet at the call of the mayor within 15
days of the election or appointment of members in order to organize. The board
shall select a chair [DIRECTOR] from the members to preside at meetings. [AND
SHALL ADOPT RULES OF PROCEDURE. IN ALL MATTERS OF PROCEDURE



O J oy Ul bW

GO S bdsSsbDSSSSDDDAAWWWLWWWWWWWWDNDNDDDDdDNDDNDDdDDSNYNDYNNSEREREREPERERERARERPERERERERRE
R O WO -JO U WNDREPEOWWWJOU P WNDEPEO WO -JoOUd WNE O WOWTIOoUd WNE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 17 of 19

NOT COVERED BY RULES ADOPTED BY THE BOARD,] Chapter 1.25 shall
govern public notice and minutes of meetings. Except as otherwise provided by law
and this section, Robert's Rules of Order, as revised, shall govern_all rules of
procedure. The board shall meet no less often than quarterly and may meet at other
times as called by the chair [PROVIDED IN ITS RULES OF PROCEDURE].

(GAAB 5.45.080)

Section 11. Anchorage Municipal Code section 2.40.035 is hereby amended to read as
follows (the remainder of the section is not affected and not set out):

2.40.035 - Recognition of community councils; special ex officio community
council recognition for Girdwood Board of Supervisors.

*k% *k% k%

B. Girdwood recognized; special provision. The municipality recognizes the
Girdwood Board of Supervisors as the community council, ex-officio, which
serves the Girdwood Community Association/Land Use Committee boundary
area depicted on Map 10 located in section 2.40.090. When the Girdwood
Board of Supervisors meets as a community council only, with no order of
business related to its service area board functions and duties, only then is it
not subject to Chapter 1.25 of this code.

(GAAB 5.75.020; AO No. 88-85, § 1, 7-19-88; AO No. 2003-75, § 1, 7-22-03; AO
No.2003-113, § 1, 8-12-03; AO No. 2005-1(S-1), § 1, 4-12-05; AO No. 2009-134, §
1, 1-12-10; AO No. 2014-3(S), § 1, 2-11-14)

Section 12. Anchorage Municipal Code section 29.10.050 is hereby amended to read as
follows:

29.10.050 - Meetings.

A. The school board shall take no official action after 12:00 midnight and before
7:00 a.m., actual time.

B. Executive sessions shall be subject to the following:

1. The school board may recess to meet in executive session if first
convened in_a meeting and then a motion to convene into an
executive session that specifies the purpose of the executive session
as clearly and specifically as possible without defeating the purpose is
passed affirmatively by the majority. In executive session, members of
the public may be excluded during which the body considers, but
takes on action on, except to give direction to an attorney or labor
negotiator regarding a specific legal matter or pending labor
negotiation, [TO DISCUSS] only the following subjects [IF THE
EXPRESS NATURE OF THE SUBJECT IS STATED IN THE
MOTION CALLING FOR THE SESSIONJ:

a. Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have
an_adverse effect upon the finances of the school district;
[PENDING LITIGATION.]

b. Labor negotiations with school district employees or other




O ~J oy Ul bW

OO s bbb WWWLWWWWWWWWDNDNDDDDNDNDDNDDdDDSNSYNDYNSNE R, RERERERERARERPERERERERERERRE
P O WOW-Jo Ul dLWNDREFP OWW-JOU P WNhDREFPOWOOJoUd WNDE O WOWLWJIOoYUdbd WNE O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 18 of 19

matters that, if immediately disclosed, would tend to affect
adversely the finances of the school district[.];

C. Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of
any person, provided the person may request a public
discussion; [MATTERS WHICH TEND TO DEFAME OR
INJURE THE REPUTATION OF PERSONS.]

d. Matters which by law, municipal [C]charter[,]_.or ordinance, or
the terms of labor contracts are required to be confidential;].]

e. Matters involving consideration of government records that by
law are not subject to public disclosure; or
f. A specific legal matter, including pending litigation.
2. No official action may be taken in executive sessions. The public shall

be excluded and the session shall be electronically recorded. The

tapes shall be available for public access according to the following

schedule:

a. If the session concerns pending litigation, the release date
shall be when all causes of action have been resolved by final
judgment or when further claims arising from the matter are
otherwise barred.

b. If the session concerns labor negotiations, the release date
shall be one year following the expiration of the labor contract
that is the subject of the negotiations.

C. If the session concerns matters provided for in subsection 1.b
of this subsection, except labor negotiations, the release date
shall be a date certain set by the school board at the
conclusion of the executive session.

d. If the session concerns matters which tend to defame or injure
the reputation of persons or concerns matters provided for in
subsection 1.d of this subsection, the school board may set a
release date or may provide that no release shall occur.

e. If the session concerns matters required by law to be
confidential or consideration of government records which by
law are not subject to public disclosure, the release date shall
be when such matters or documents are disclosable.

3. The school board may extend the time periods set forth in subsection

2 of this subsection only for good cause shown.

4. Notwithstanding any provisions of chapter 3.90 to the contrary, tapes

or minutes of an executive session shall be available only to school
board members or authorized school administrative staff until the date
of release, if any, as authorized under the provisions set forth in this
section.

C. The agenda for the regular school board meetings shall be public information
and shall be published on the school district's website not less than 32 hours
prior to any regular school board meeting.

D. Any school board member who discloses to a third party confidential
information which was properly discussed in executive session shall be
subject to such action as the school board is empowered to do by law.



O J oy Ul bW

I I R R R R N R e e e N e e
Lo U WNHE OWOW-IoU D WN O W

AO Updating Public Meetings Code Page 19 of 19

E. In addition to the notice requirements of this title and any other notice
requirements adopted by the school board, notice of meetings of the school
board and its committees and other subordinate units shall conform
to chapter 1.25. For purposes of the school board, an ad hoc committee
shall be under_the definition of task force in that chapter.

(AO No. 92-91(S); AO No. 94-132, § 8, 8-25-94; AO No. 2009-134, § 1, 1-12-10)
Section 13. The Municipal Clerk’s Office, the Information Technology Department, and
the Mayor’s Office are requested to conduct training for Boards and Commissions prior to
the effective date of this ordinance. Boards and Commissions and their staffers should be
prepared to implement the new provisions on the effective date of this ordinance.

Section 14. This ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2026 after passage and
approval by the Assembly.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Anchorage Assembly this 9th day of September, 2025.

ATTEST: Chair

Municipal Clerk



O J o U Wb

BB DR D WWWWWWWWWwWwwdhdhdDDNDNddDDYNNd™ddD™NYNNE R RERERERERPRERERERPREEPRERERE
DLW NDEFPE O WO JoOU D WNDEFE OWOOWJOoOU D WDNDE O WO Jo Ul WDN R O W

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE

ASSEMBLY MEMORANDUM
No. AM 620-2025

Meeting Date: August 12, 2025
From: Assembly Chair Constant

Subject: AN ORDINANCE OF THE ANCHORAGE MUNICIPAL ASSEMBLY
UPDATING ANCHORAGE MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 1.25,
PUBLIC MEETINGS, AND AMENDING CHAPTER 4.05, AMC
SECTIONS 2.30.030, 2.30.036, 27.20.040 AND 29.10.050, AND
RELATED CODE CHANGES.

This proposed ordinance is an omnibus update to the public meetings chapter of
the Anchorage Municipal Code, and other related code provisions. All municipalities
are required to comply with the state Open Meetings Act, AS 44.62.310 et seq., but
may have additional requirements or iterate provisions for compliance. This
ordinance seeks to:

e update the language in the Code to be similar to the Open Meetings Act,

e provide consistency between assembly, school board, boards and
commissions, and LRSA Boards,

o follow best practices with current technology, and

e provide detailed information on how to follow the laws.

There are some updates specific to our local government structure and procedures.
Currently, the Anchorage Municipal Code speaks to public notice requirements in
relation to the different types of bodies and it is assumed that all bodies “advise the
public of their meeting schedules, or publicly advertise their meetings where
necessitated by statutory requirements.” Additionally, the Code doesn’t specify who
in relation to the board or commission is tasked with these responsibilities. The
sections of code relating to boards and commissions have not seen significant
updates since the mid-90’s; LRSA Boards, the code was brought forth from the
Greater Anchorage Area Borough Code.

While this looks like a big update, it's more a big reorganization. Instead of speaking
to each type of body and the need to publicly notice the meeting, it spells out how
to notice meetings in AMC chapter 1.25 and provides that each type of body must
comply with that chapter. There are a few substantive changes to the duties of staff
and the requirement for an agenda and minutes. Changes are described fully in the
attached crosswalk.

There are some costs associated with the new requirement that all board and
commission meetings are to be recorded, for the purchase of additional audio
recording equipment that must be available to meet that requirement. However, the
Municipal Clerk estimates costs to the Municipality overall are less than $30,000,
therefor a summary of economic effects is not included.



=

P O W oW Joy Ul wdh

AM for AO updating Public Meetings Code, Chapter 1.25

Prepared by: Municipal Clerk

Reviewed by: Assembly Counsel’s Office

Respectfully submitted: ~ Christopher Constant, Assembly Chair
District 1 — North Anchorage

Attachments: A — Repealed Code sections
B — Crosswalk

Page 2 of 2



	1a MOAProposedBudget2026-AppendixM_highlights
	Appendix M - Girdwood Valley Service Area

	1b 2026 Fire Budget -GBOS Final
	Fire FY26 Budget GBOS B Ver 
	Fire FY26 Budget GBOS A Ver 

	1c 2026 Street Maintenance GBOS Final
	Sheet1

	5 AO 2025-091_highlighted



